
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY May 30, 2023
Meeting Start Time:  9:30 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Stillwater Building
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108

Billings, MT
9:15 a.m. Agenda Setting 

             

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS
 
 
CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. CLERK AND RECORDER  
a.   McNeil Subdivision and the S.I.A.
b.   Sedgwick Subdivision an the S.I.A.

 
2. COMMISSIONERS  

a.   Board Reappointments - Billie Ruff to County Compensation Board 
b.   Letter to City of Billings Regarding Jail Assessment 

 
3. FINANCE  

a.   Metra ARPA Infrastructure Materials Testing Added Scope with Terracon
b.   Amended Resolution 23-66 to Create RSID 890 and 890M

 
4. PUBLIC WORKS  

a.   Big Sky State Games Facility Use Permit - Dates of the Big Sky State Games are July 19th, 20th, 21st
b.   Contract with Jim Rooney for Brookwood Pond Maintenance and Repairs
c.   Vehicle Title for Auction - 1GCHK33JXYF473044 - 2000 Chevy Truck
d.   Paving Agreement with Brian Elkin for Paving a Section of 72nd Street West

 
5. HUMAN RESOURCES  

  PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment; GIS - 1 Salary &
Other; Detention Facility - 1 Appointment, 3 Salary & Other, 1 Termination; Clerk of Court - 1
Termination; IT - 1 Salary & Other; Justice Court - 1 Termination; Sheriff's Office - 3 Salary & Other 
 



             

 FILE ITEMS 

1. AUDITOR  
  Payroll Audit - May 1 to May 15, 2023

 
2. COMMISSIONERS  

a.   Jessica Flint - MetraPark Advisory Board Resignation Letter
b.   MCEP Grant Award Letter
c.   ExxonMobil - Assignment of Communication Site Lease Agreement & Right of Way Easement 
d.   Board Minutes - DUI Task Force May 2023

 
3. HUMAN RESOURCES  

  May 1 - May 15 Payroll Audit
 

4. PUBLIC WORKS  
  Contract with In Site Engineering for RSID 890C, associated with the design for paving of South 54th

Street West
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   1. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: McNeil Subdivision
Submitted For: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder 
Submitted By: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder

TOPIC:
McNeil Subdivision and the S.I.A.

BACKGROUND:
Review

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approved

Attachments
McNeil SIA 























   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   1. b.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Sedgwick Subdivision
Submitted For: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder 
Submitted By: Jeff Martin, Clerk And Recorder

TOPIC:
Sedgwick Subdivision an the S.I.A.
 

BACKGROUND:
Review

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Execute.

Attachments
Sedgwick SIA 





















   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Board Reappointments
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Reappointments - Billie Ruff to County Compensation Board 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachments 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and mail 

Attachments
Billie Ruff 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. b.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Letter to City of Billings Regarding Jail Assessment 
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Letter to City of Billings Regarding Jail Assessment 
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny 

Attachments
Letter to City of Billings 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   3. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Metra ARPA Infrastructure Terracon Materials Testing Added Scope
Submitted For: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: James Matteson, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Metra ARPA Infrastructure Materials Testing Added Scope with Terracon

BACKGROUND:
Terracon provided materials testing for Metra Infrastructure Phase One - VIP Premium
Parking Lot.  Additional Scope of Services to include materials testing for Phase II -
Lower Lot and Arena Access Road.  The additional scope will not exceed $30,000.00 for
Soil concrete and asphalt testing for Phase I & Phase II.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Terracon Addendum Materials Testing 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   3. b.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M
Submitted For: Lisa Sticka, Comptroller  Submitted By: Lisa Sticka, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Amended Resolution 23-66 to Create RSID 890 and 890M
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file.

Attachments
Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M Exhibits 
Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M 













Resolution No. 23 – 66 CORRECTED 
Resolution to Create Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 890 and 890M 

1 of 1 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 23-66 
CORRECTED 

 

Resolution to Create Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 890 and 890M 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-12-2101 through 7-12-2113 of the Montana Code Annotated, a board of county commissioners has the 
authority to create a rural special improvement district to pave roads.  To create a district, a board should pass a resolution of intent, set a 
public hearing, provide notice of the public hearing, receive protests, hold a public hearing, consider protests and pass a resolution that 
either creates or does not create the district. 
 

WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners received a request from Jerry Young, a property owner who owns 
the land located at 2251 South 54th Street West, in Yellowstone County to create a rural special improvement district to pave a portion of 
54th Street West from Neibauer Road north approximately 1300 feet (near 2222 54th Street West) and to create a rural special improvement 
district to maintain the road after it has been paved. The maintenance RSID is conditional and will only be created if the construction 
RSID is successful in its creation.  Currently, the road is gravel.  Below is a summary of the specifics of the District.  
 
District Summary 
District Name:   Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 890 

Yellowstone County Rural Special Improvement District No. 890M 
District Location: Parcels in Belmont Acreage Tracts, Windmill Estates, Barta Subdivision, Certificate of Survey No. 1828, 

Certificate of Survey No. 1050 and Certificate of Survey No. 2607. See Exhibit A. 
District Parcels:   22 parcels. See Exhibit B.  
District Activities: Construction District – Pave Portion of 54th Street West from Neibauer Road north approximately 1300 feet 

(near 2222 54th Street West) 
 Maintenance District – Maintain Portion of 54th Street West from Neibauer Road north approximately 1300 

feet (near 2222 54th Street West) 
District Costs:   Construction District - $104,000.00 estimated total 
    Maintenance District - $2,200.00 estimated annual. See Exhibit C. 
District Assessment Method:  Per Parcel. See Exhibit D. 
District Assessment: Annual Assessment Per Parcel – Construction District - $850.00 
 Annual Assessment Per Parcel – Maintenance District - $100.00  
District Duration:   Construction District – 7 years  
    Maintenance District - Indefinite 
District Engineer:   Michael Black PE, Yellowstone County Public Works Department  
 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2023, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners passed a resolution of intent to create Rural 
Special Improvement District No. 890 and 890M to pave a portion of 54th Street West from Neibauer Road north approximately 1300 feet 
(near 2222 54th Street West) and to maintain the road after it is paved and set a public hearing on the creation of the Districts for May 16, 
2023.  On April 7, 2023, the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder mailed notice of the hearing to all property owners in the proposed 
Districts.  On April 7, 2023 and April 14, 2023, the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder published notice of the public hearing in the 
Yellowstone County News.  On May 16, 2023, the Board held a public hearing on the creation of the Districts.  The Board heard comments 
on the Districts and considered protests as to the creation of the Districts.  The Board did not receive enough protests to prevent the 
creation of the Districts.  7 out of 22 property owners protested the creation of the Districts.  The Board believes that it is in the best 
interest of the public to create the Districts. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 
The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners create Rural Special Improvement District No. 890 and 890M to pave a portion 
of 54th Street West from Neibauer north approximately 1300 feet (near 2222 54th Street West) and to maintain the road after it is paved.  
The specifics of the Districts are contained in the exhibit attached to this Resolution.  The Board assessment for the Districts will appear on 
the property owners 2023 tax statement. 
 
Passed and Adopted on the 16th day of May 2023. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 
 
      
John Ostlund, Chair 
 
      
Mark Morse, Member    ATTEST: 
 
            
Donald W. Jones, Member    Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder  



   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   4. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Facility Use Permit
Submitted By: Ronni Tallerico

TOPIC:
Big Sky State Games Facility Use Permit - Dates of the Big Sky State Games are July
19th, 20th, 21st

BACKGROUND:
5k, 10k, and 1/2 Marathon on Thiel River Road
Also Big Sky State Games on July 19th , 20th , 21st.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
Big Sky Facility Use Permit - 2023 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   4. b.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Contract for Brookwood Pond Maintenance and Repairs 
Submitted For: Tim Miller, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Tim Miller, Public Works Director

TOPIC:
Contract with Jim Rooney for Brookwood Pond Maintenance and Repairs

BACKGROUND:
Contract with Jim Rooney for repair and emaintenanceo of the groundwater recharge
pond in Brookwood Sub 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve contract

Attachments
Brookwood Sub 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   4. c.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Vehicle Title
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Vehicle Title for Auction - 1GCHK33JXYF473044 - 2000 Chevy Truck

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Vehicle Title 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   4. d.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Paving Agreement for 72nd Street West
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Paving Agreement with Brian Elkin for Paving a Section of 72nd Street West
 

BACKGROUND:
72nd Street West Paving Agreement

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Paving Agreement for 72nd Street West 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   5.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment; GIS - 1 Salary &
Other; Detention Facility - 1 Appointment, 3 Salary & Other, 1 Termination; Clerk of
Court - 1 Termination; IT - 1 Salary & Other; Justice Court - 1 Termination; Sheriff's
Office - 3 Salary & Other 
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 











































   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   1.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Payroll Audit
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Payroll Audit - May 1 to May 15, 2023
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Payroll Audit 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Jessica Flint - MetraPark Advisory Board Resignation Letter
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Jessica Flint - MetraPark Advisory Board Resignation Letter

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
Resignation Letter 



May 17th, 2023 
John Ostlund, Yellowstone County Commissioner 
Don Jones, Yellowstone County Commissioner 
Mark Morse, Yellowstone County Commissioner 
Tim Goodridge, MetraPark General Manager 
Mike Mayott, MetraPark Advisory Board President 
 
P.O Box 35000 
Billings, Montana 59107 
 

Dear Board of Commissioners, MetraPark Staff, and MetraPark Advisory Board Members: 

I am sad to notify you of my immediate resignation from the MetraPark Advisory Board. Due to my 
demanding work schedule and unpredictable travel, I unfortunately am unable to attend board 
meetings on a consistent basis.  

I am pleased with the recent direction we are working towards at MetraPark and hope to see it 
continue. As a vested community member, constituent, but most importantly a mom, I look forward to 
seeing the vision derived from the masterplan come to fruition for our future generations and for 
quality-of-life improvement in Yellowstone County and the State.  

Thank you for the honor and privilege to serve in this capacity. 

God Bless, 

Jessica  

Jessica Flint 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. b.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: MCEP Grant Award Letter
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
MCEP Grant Award Letter

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
Award Letter 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. c.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: ExxonMobil - Assignment of Communication Site Lease Agreement & Right

of Way Easement 
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
ExxonMobil - Assignment of Communication Site Lease Agreement & Right of Way
Easement 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
ExxonMobil 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   2. d.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - DUI Task Force May 2023
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attachment 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File 

Attachments
DUI Task Force Minutes 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   3.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Response to Audit Findings - May 22, 2023
Submitted By: Amy Mills

TOPIC:
May 1 - May 15 Payroll Audit
 

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na

Attachments
Audit Findings 







   
B.O.C.C. Regular Agenda Item   4.           
Meeting Date: 05/30/2023  
Title: Contract with Engineer for RSID 890C
Submitted By: Mike Black

TOPIC:
Contract with In Site Engineering for RSID 890C, associated with the design for paving
of South 54th Street West
 

BACKGROUND:
BOCC recently passed a resolution to create RSID 890C and 890M

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
place the item to file

Attachments
In Site Engineering Agreement 



 1 

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner 
and Engineer on the Basis of 

A Stipulated Price 
 

This agreement is dated as of the 30th day of May 2023, by and between Yellowstone County, Montana 
(hereinafter called Owner), and In Site Engineering, P.C. (hereinafter called Engineer). 
 
Owner and Engineer, in consideration of the material covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows: 
 
 1. Scope of Work 
 

 Engineer shall provide engineering services needed for the design of road improvements 
for RSID 890C 

 
 See attached proposal 
 
 Should any additional work need to be performed, both parties – prior to the work being 

complete – must sign a written contract amendment. 
 
2. Contract Times 

 
This contract will be in effect from May 30, 2023, until June 30, 2024.  Should any work, 
outside the Scope of Work need to be performed, both parties must agree in writing.      
  

3. Contract Price 
 
Owner shall pay the Engineer a total of $12,900 upon competition and acceptance of the 
project by the Owner.  Any contract amendments for the project must be approved in writing 
by the Owner prior to the work being started. 

 
 4. Engineers Representation  
 

 4.1 Engineer has examined and reviewed the Contract Documents and other related 
paperwork.  

   
4.2 Engineer has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the 

general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance and 
furnishing of the work. 

 
4.3 Engineer is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local laws and 

regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the work.  
    

4.4 Engineer has given Owner written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or 
discrepancies that the Engineer has discovered in the Contract Documents and  

 that the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey the 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishings of the 
work.         

 
 

5. Contract Documents 



 2 

 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between Owner                 
 and Engineer, consist of the following: 

 
5.1       This Agreement. 
 
5.2       Engineer’s proposal.              

 
5.3       Engineer’s current Certificate of Insurance and Workers Compensation coverage. 

 
6. Miscellaneous 

 
6.1 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 

Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of 
the party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, moneys that 
may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without written 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), 
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment 
no assignment will discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the 
Contract Documents. 

 
6.2 The successful bidder (herein after Engineer),shall maintain at its sole cost and 

expense, commercial general liability insurance naming Yellowstone County, as 
additional insured against liability for damages for bodily injury, including death 
and completed operations and property damages in a minimum amount of Seven 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) for each claim and One Million 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars , ($1,500,000.00), in the aggregate arising from 
incidents which occur as the result of Engineers negligence while performing any 
work or service and for which Yellowstone County , sole basis of liability is 
vicarious liability for the acts or omissions of the Engineer or/and subcontractors.  
Engineer shall maintain at its cost and expense, insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property, including contractual liability which 
may arise from or in connection with work or service by Engineer, agents, 
employees, representatives, assigns and sub-Consultants.  This insurance shall 
cover claims as may be caused by any negligent act or omission.  The policy of 
insurance shall be an occurrence policy with a Best Rating of A- or better and 
must be in force throughout the period. 

Engineer shall name on the Certificate of liability insurance Yellowstone County, 
as additional insured for on-site work or Maintenance Service.  In addition, 
Engineer will furnish to Yellowstone County a copy of the policy endorsement, 
CG 32 87 05 10, indicating that Yellowstone County, are named as an additional 
insured under the Engineers insurance policy. 

Engineer agrees to furnish both the Certificate of insurance and policy                  
endorsement at least ten (10) days prior to beginning work. 

Engineer agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Yellowstone County /  
from and against any and all claims demands, obligations causes of action, 
lawsuits and all damages and liabilities fines, judgments, costs, (including 
settlement costs), and expenses associated therewith (including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and disbursements), arising from incidents that occur the result of 
Engineers negligence. And for which Yellowstone County, sole basis of liability 



 3 

is vicarious liability for the acts or omissions of Engineer.  The defense and 
indemnification obligations under this paragraph of the Invitation to Bid shall not 
be limited by any assertions or finding that Yellowstone County, is liable for any 
damages by reason of a non-delegable duty.    

 
6.3 Engineer is required to maintain workers compensation insurance, or an 

independent Contractor’s exemption issued by the Montana Department of 
Labor covering Contractor and Contractor’s employees.  Engineer is not, nor is 
Engineer’s workers, employees of Yellowstone County/Yellowstone County 
Public Works.  Workers Compensation insurance, or the exemption from the 
workers compensation obligation must be valid for the entire period.  

 
6.4 Owner and Engineer each binds itself, its partners, successors, assign and legal 

representative to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assign and legal 
representative to respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in 
the Contract Documents. 

 
6.5 Engineer must give preference to the employment of bona fide residents of 

Montana in the performance of this work.  
 

6.6 All work and materials must be warranted for a period of one year from                 
 date of installation.  

 
6.7 The Parties agree that the laws of the State of Montana shall govern this contract, 

and that venue shall be in the Thirteenth Judicial District Court, Yellowstone 
County, Montana. 

 
6.8 Engineer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner against all 

claims for injuries to person or damages to property occurred from or in 
Connection with the Engineers performance under the Agreement. 

 
6.9 In the event of litigation between Engineer and the Owner, the Prevailing party 

shall be entitled to reimbursement of Court costs and Reasonable Attorney fees 
by the non-prevailing party. 

 
7. Performance 

 
The Engineer must, in performance of work under this contract, fully comply 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations, including the 
Montana Human Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975 and the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any subletting or 
subcontracting by the Engineer subjects Engineers to the same provisions.  In 
accordance with section 49-3-207, MCA, the Engineer agrees that the hiring of 
persons to perform the contract will be made on the basis of merit and 
qualification and there will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, 
creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or 
national origin by the person performing under the contract. 

 
8. Termination 

 










	Agenda
	McNeil Subdivision
	Att1_McNeil SIA
	Sedgwick Subdivision
	Att1_Sedgwick SIA
	Board Reappointments
	Att1_Billie Ruff 
	Letter to City of Billings Regarding Jail Assessment 
	Att1_Letter to City of Billings 
	Metra ARPA Infrastructure Terracon Materials Testing Added Scope
	Att1_Terracon Addendum Materials Testing
	Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M
	Att1_Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M Exhibits
	Att2_Amended Resolution to Create RSID 890 and 890M
	Facility Use Permit
	Att1_Big Sky Facility Use Permit - 2023
	Contract for Brookwood Pond Maintenance and Repairs 
	Att1_Brookwood Sub 
	Vehicle Title
	Att1_Vehicle Title
	Paving Agreement for 72nd Street West
	Att1_Paving Agreement for 72nd Street West
	PARS
	Att1_PARS
	Payroll Audit
	Att1_Payroll Audit
	Jessica Flint - MetraPark Advisory Board Resignation Letter
	Att1_Resignation Letter
	MCEP Grant Award Letter
	Att1_Award Letter
	ExxonMobil - Assignment of Communication Site Lease Agreement & Right of Way Easement 
	Att1_ExxonMobil 
	Board Minutes
	Att1_DUI Task Force Minutes 
	Response to Audit Findings - May 22, 2023
	Att1_Audit Findings
	Contract with Engineer for RSID 890C
	Att1_In Site Engineering Agreement

